#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION, a Florida corporation,

Petitioner, Supreme Court Case No.: SC02-

2272 vs.

CITY OF WINTER PARK, DCA Case Nos.: 5D02-87; 5D01-

2470

a municipal corporation L.T. Case No.: 01-CI-01-4558-

39

created under the laws of the State of Florida,

Respondent.

\_\_\_\_\_

Initial Brief of Petitioner Florida Power Corporation

R. Alexander Glenn, Esquire Associate General Counsel Progress Energy Service Company, LLC 100 Central Avenue, Suite 1D St. Petersburg, FL 33701

Counsel for Florida Power Corporation

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this Initial Brief, references to Florida Power
Corporation are designated "FPC," and references to the City
of Winter Park are designated "City." References to the
Florida Public Service Commission are designated "PSC."

Because the decision below was rendered in an appeal from a nonfinal order granting an injunction, the record before this Court includes a three-volume appendix filed by FPC at the Fifth District, a one-volume appendix filed by the City at the Fifth District, and several supplemental documents that were inadvertently excluded from the appendices. All cites to the record (derived from FPC's appendix at the Fifth District) will be in the form: "(R[appendix number] [page number])."

All cites to FPC's appendix filed with this Court will be in the form: "(A[tab number] [page number])."

All emphasis in quoted material is supplied unless otherwise stated.

#### INTRODUCTION

This is a review of the Fifth District's split-panel decision in Florida Power Corporation v. City of Winter Park, 827 So. 2d 322 (Fla. 5th DCA 2002), which was certified to be in direct conflict with the Second District's unanimous decision in Florida Power Corporation v. Town of Belleair, 830 So. 2d 852 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002). This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to article V, section 3(b)(4), Florida Constitution. The decision under review also expressly and directly conflicts with this Court's decision in Alachua County v. State, 737 So. 2d 1065 (Fla. 1999). Accordingly, this Court also has jurisdiction based on the misapplication of its precedent. See art. V, § 3(b)(3), Fla. Const.

Although not a basis for jurisdiction, the decision under review additionally conflicts with a ruling rendered by Circuit Judge Terry Lewis and affirmed unanimously by the First District in Leon County v. Talquin Electric Cooperative, Inc., 795 So. 2d 1142 (Fla. 1st DCA 2001), which decision was a per curiam affirmance opinion citing to Alachua County.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

#### 1. General Background.

This case concerns the power of a city (or a court), after the expiration of a bargained-for franchise agreement, to require an electric utility to continue to pay a sixpercent "fee" on the revenues from the utility's sale of electricity to customers within the city's territorial limits. FPC asserted that such a fee without a franchise agreement is, in actuality, an unconstitutional tax, prohibited by this Court's decision in Alachua County.

The Fifth District affirmed the trial court's mandatory permanent injunction requiring FPC to continue to pay, indefinitely, the same franchise fee it had previously agreed to pay for the benefits of a long-term franchise. (R3 1050-59); see City of Winter Park, 827 So. 2d at 325. The Fifth District refused to apply Alachua County to the fee sought by the City and imposed by the trial court via injunction, concluding it was "fair and reasonable" to continue FPC's payment obligations under the expired franchise agreement to prevent FPC from "extorting" favorable terms in a new franchise agreement and to prevent the City from having to raise taxes. See id. at 325. The court likened FPC to a holdover tenant in a common landlord/tenant situation, stating that, because the City could not evict FPC from the rights-ofway FPC uses to provide electric service to its customers, FPC was a tenant at sufferance, liable for payment of the

"original rent."

Judge Sawaya dissented, recognizing that this Court observed in Alachua County that a flat percent-of-revenues fee could not be imposed for use of rights-of-way in the light of the state-wide regulatory scheme for the "location and costs of providing utilities." City of Winter Park, 827 So. 2d at 326 (Sawaya, J., dissenting). Judge Sawaya viewed the unilateral imposition of the expired franchise fee as an unconstitutional tax under Alachua County.

The Fifth District certified that its decision was in direct conflict with the Second District's decision in Florida Power Corporation v. Town of Belleair, 830 So. 2d 852 (Fla. 2d DCA 2002). On virtually identical facts, the Second District held a flat percent-of-revenues fee, in the absence of a bargained-for franchise agreement, is an illegal tax under Alachua County. The First District has similarly refused to allow such a fee, affirming per curiam, based on Alachua County, Judge Lewis's decision that such a fee is in reality an unconstitutional tax. See Talquin Electric, 795 So. 2d at 1142.

All told, seven of the nine Florida appellate judges who have reviewed the issue currently before this Court have concluded that Alachua County prohibits a percent-of-revenues "fee," because, in the absence of a franchise agreement such a fee is, in actuality, an unconstitutional tax.

# 2. The Expired Franchise Ordinance.

FPC supplies electrical power to electrical users within the City. (R1 3); (A5 3). On January 13, 1971, in exchange for franchise terms satisfactory to both parties -- including a guaranteed franchise within the City for thirty years -- FPC agreed to pay a six-percent-of-revenues franchise fee to the City.1 (R1 6-8); (A5 6-8). The franchise agreement expired by its terms on January 12, 2001, but the parties agreed to an extension until June 12, 2001. (R1 9-10); (A5 6-8). The franchise agreement, and FPC's obligation to pay the franchise fee pursuant to the franchise agreement, expired at that time. (R1 30).

The expired franchise contained no provision for its unilateral extension, and the parties have not been able to agree to terms for a new franchise agreement. (R1 6-8); (A5 6-8). Instead, immediately upon the expiration of the franchise agreement, the City adopted Ordinance No. 2420-01, which purports to unilaterally require FPC "to continue to perform its obligations under the terms of the terminated Preexisting Franchise," while simultaneously declaring that FPC is only a "tenant at sufferance" on City rights-of-way. (R1

<sup>1</sup> This particular agreement required FPC to pay "an amount which added to the amount of all taxes, licenses, and other impositions . . . will equal 6% of [FPC's] revenues from the sale of electrical energy to residential and commercial customers within the corporate limits . . . " (R1 131-32). For ease of reference, however, the parties have referred to this fee as a "six-percent-of-revenues fee." In accordance with the PSC's rule, the fee is passed through to the electrical customers within the City. See Fla. Admin. Code § 25-6.100(7).

147).

FPC did not bargain for and has not agreed to the terms imposed under this new Ordinance. (R1 65). Because the 1971 franchise agreement has expired, FPC advised the City that FPC would not collect the franchise fee agreed to under that expired agreement. (R3 1054). FPC also refused to collect the City's new fee imposed under Ordinance 2420-01, asserting that a unilaterally imposed fee, unrelated to the City's actual cost of regulation of FPC's use of rights-of-way, constitutes an unconstitutional tax under Alachua County.

FPC filed suit to invalidate the new fee imposed under Ordinance No. 2420-01. That suit, <u>Florida Power Corporation v. City of Winter Park</u>, <u>Florida</u>, No. 01-CI-01-4558-39 (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct.), is still pending before Circuit Judge Hauser.

### 3. The City's separate lawsuit.

Prior to FPC's filing suit to invalidate Ordinance No. 2420-01, the City had filed the suit giving rise to this review seeking to extend the franchise fee obligations of the expired franchise agreement. The only relief that the City sought in that suit with regard to the expired franchise agreement is alleged in subsection (e) of the prayer for relief: "To order FPC to comply with all provisions of the Franchise, including the payment of franchise fees, for so long as FPC continues to utilize the WINTER PARK rights-of-way." (R1 4); (A5 4).

In its complaint, the City alleged it was authorized to

regulate FPC's use of rights-of-way "and has the power to impose a charge for use and occupation of those rights-of-way." (R1 3); (A5 1-3). There was no allegation by the City, however, that six percent of FPC's revenues, whatever amount those future revenues might be, was reasonably related to the City's actual costs associated with regulating FPC's use of rights-of-way. (R1 1-5); (A5 1-5). Nor was there an allegation that six-percent-of-revenues constituted a valid regulatory, franchise, or user fee.

It is the City's suit, not FPC's suit, that is before this Court, although both involve the unilateral imposition of the same "fee" that FPC challenges as a tax not authorized by general law.

#### 4. The Temporary Injunction.

Several weeks after the parties' franchise agreement expired, the City filed a motion in its suit against FPC for "Temporary Injunction to Require Florida Power to Continue Paying Franchise Fees." (R1 15-19). The City asked the circuit court to order FPC "to continue to collect fees from its customers and continue to pay the franchise fees to Winter Park as provided by the 1971 franchise." (R1 16). The motion did not mention a regulatory fee, rental charge, or user fee, nor did it rely on the City's new Ordinance. (R1 15-19).

At the temporary injunction hearing, the City presented no evidence that the fee it sought to impose by injunction was

related to the City's regulatory costs or to the supposed rental value of FPC's use of rights-of-way. (R1 48-99). The City simply asserted that FPC had agreed to pay this fee under the now-expired franchise agreement. (R1 48-99). The City also argued, without any support in the record, that "[t]here are 109 cities with such franchises" and "[e]very one of them pays six percent." (R1 85). Finally, the City further argued that its Ordinance requiring FPC to continue to pay the expired franchise fee had to be "presumed valid" and presumptively established "a fair rental value." (R1 90).

In turn, FPC asserted that the City had no legal right to force FPC to continue to pay the franchise fee because the franchise had expired by its express terms. (R1 48-99). Under Alachua County, the only fee the City can unilaterally impose for an electric utility's use of public rights-of-way is one based on its actual cost of regulating FPC's use of rights-of-way. Because the City did not claim or prove that a flat six-percent-of-revenues "fee" was a proper regulatory fee, FPC contended that it was an unconstitutional tax, just as in Alachua County. (R1 73-83).

The trial court granted the City's motion for a temporary mandatory injunction, ruling from the bench that "there's a clear legal right for the City of Winter Park to be compensated at some rate for the use of their right-of-way, and that rate apparently at 109 other municipalities and this very municipality up until six weeks ago was presumed to be

six percent, and I think for these purposes I should go with six percent." (R1 93). In a later ruling, however, the court acknowledged: "I'm staring at Alachua v. State of Florida which indicates that this is anything but clear, that it's very much muddy as a result of that opinion concerning these fees." (R1 119).

## 5. The Evidentiary Hearing.

Prior to the final evidentiary hearing, FPC deposed the City's designated representative, Assistant City Manager Randy Knight. Mr. Knight acknowledged that, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, the City levied an ad valorem tax on property only at the rate of 3.172 mills, which is well below the ten mill constitutional cap. (R1 44). He further acknowledged that the City's new fee was based solely on the amount of franchise fees historically paid as part of bargained-for franchises. (R1 27, 38). The City did not know its costs of regulating and maintaining rights-of-way. (R1 33, 36, 40).

FPC deposed Mr. Knight again, a month before trial. (R3 1060-1087). He had nothing "to add or change" to his previous testimony with regard to "the City's costs of maintaining and regulating the rights-of-way. . . ." (R3 1070). The only basis for the City's new fee was that this was "market value" for franchise fees; the City had no basis for its fee "other than looking at other negotiated franchises between utilities and municipalities." (R3 1070).

At the hearing, the City conceded that its complaint asked only that the court order FPC to continue to pay the expired franchise fee. (R3 544). When it became clear that the City was nonetheless going to advance other, unpleaded theories as a basis for the fee, FPC objected. (R3 568-569). The trial court agreed:

I cannot grant the specific relief that you're requesting in your complaint under the clear holding of Alachua. I cannot unilaterally impose a franchise fee nor permit the county to pass an ordinance that essentially constitutes a tax. All I can do is, if you do amend your pleadings, consider the reasonable value of the regulatory use, the use of, I suppose, the fair rental value of the rights-of-way.

(R3 570-571). Thereafter, however, the court allowed the City to proceed on a claim for "a regulatory fee," without any amendment to the City's complaint. (R3 580).

The City's first witness, Douglas Metcalf, was a Winter Park City Commissioner. (R3 619). He did not know the City's cost of regulating or maintaining the rights-of-way. (R3 631-632). The court questioned Mr. Metcalf on this point:

So if there is no franchise agreement and if it's worth six percent with the franchise agreement, it's, per se, worth less than six percent without a franchise agreement. So really what is it worth to the City of Winter Park in terms of their fees to insist that no one enter into a buyout? And you say it's very important, so I'm saying if it's 800,000 dollars important, that would mean three percent would be an appropriate fee assuming that this is any way to determine the fee, and the Supreme Court tells me it's not. The Supreme Court tells me it's the actual cost.

(R3 636-637).

The City then called Mr. Knight to testify. (R3 638). He

estimated that the City's total costs associated with all rights-of-way exceeded \$4.5 million. (R3 643). On cross-examination, though, Mr. Knight admitted that the City did not actually know what its current cost was to maintain public rights-of-way. (R3 648). Furthermore, eight to ten utilities occupy those rights-of-way, and the City had not determined its costs to maintain or regulate FPC's use of the public rights-of-way. (R3 649).

In its case, FPC presented evidence that it would be impossible to serve its customers within the City without crossing over rights-of-way. (R3 672-73).

At the outset of closing arguments, the court remarked:

I particularly would like to hear how I am to divine from all of this evidence or what little evidence I have received what possible value to place on the, number one, the use of the rights-of-way, if that is in fact a consideration; number two, the cost of the City of maintaining and regulating the right-of-way for the benefit of Florida Power, so if you can tell me how to do that, I'd appreciate it. . . I think we have to do it with only passing reference to the six percent as well. Although I've admitted that six percent evidence . . ., it's clear that's not the basis that I'm supposed to use to determine the valuation.

(R3 682). At the conclusion of the hearing, the trial court characterized the City's presentation as a "paucity of evidence concerning actual cost of regulation and maintenance of the rights-of-way." (R3 748).

#### 6. Trial Court Rulings.

The trial court thereafter entered preliminary findings, and later entered a permanent injunction requiring FPC to

continue to pay the six-percent-of-revenues franchise fee to the City based upon those preliminary findings. (R3 1050-52). The trial court ruled that FPC was a "holdover tenant at sufferance," and that the six percent of revenues was previously "bargained for" and it was "reasonably related" to the City's cost of regulating FPC's use of the rights-of-way. (R3 1058-59).

These findings were based solely on the expired franchise agreement and Mr. Knight's estimate that the City incurs approximately 4.5 million a year in total costs associated with the rights-of-way, based on the City's projected budget for all costs associated with the rights-of-way. (R3 642-43); (R3 760-66). Mr. Knight did not allocate those costs to any of the approximate ten utilities in the rights-of-way, or to the City's own use of the rights-of-way. (R3 770-771). Nor did he attempt to allocate the costs associated with the general public's use of the rights-of-way. (R3 770). Mr. Knight admitted that most of the City's costs of regulating and maintaining rights-of-way would be incurred regardless of FPC's presence in the public rights-of-way. (R3 772-780). There is no evidence connecting the City's costs associated with the rights-of-way to the revenues derived by FPC from its sale of electricity.

#### 7. Fifth District's Decision.

In a split decision, the Fifth District affirmed, certifying that its decision was in conflict with the Second

District's decision on this issue. See City of Winter Park, 827 So. 2d at 325. The court analogized FPC's use of the public rights-of-way to the use of a holdover tenant in a traditional landlord-tenant proceeding. See id. The Fifth District commented that it was appropriate for the trial court to have imposed the expired franchise fee on FPC in order to prevent the City from being "extorted" by FPC in further franchise agreement negotiations, and to prevent the City from having to raise taxes, cut services, or dip into its reserves. See id.

Judge Sawaya dissented, agreeing with the Second Distict that such a fee, in the absence of a franchise agreement is, in actuality, an unconstitutional tax. See id. at 326 (Sawaya, J., dissenting) (citing to Town of Belleair). He also recognized that a court cannot, by injunction, extend an expired contract (i.e., the franchise agreement). See id. at 327.

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Since the commencement of this litigation, FPC has consistently maintained that the challenged "fee" is an unconstitutional tax, citing Alachua County v. State, 737 So. 2d 1065, 1068 (Fla. 1999). FPC acknowledges it is obligated to pay the City a reasonable regulatory fee associated with FPC's use of the rights-of-way. The City, however, has never undertaken an analysis to determine what such reasonable fee would be, and it has never submitted a bill to FPC to that effect. Instead, the City, without the benefit of a franchise agreement, sought to require FPC to pay the same flat percent-of-revenue franchise fee as FPC did under the now-expired franchise agreement. Yet, the City has not granted to FPC the rights FPC previous enjoyed under the now-expired franchise agreement.

The City sought -- and obtained -- a mandatory permanent injunction that requires FPC to continue to pay the same franchise fee to the City, even though the 1971 bargained-for franchise between FPC and the City has expired. As this Court's decision in Alachua County makes clear, however, FPC cannot be forced to pay this fee in the absence of a bargained-for franchise. The unilateral imposition of a flat percent-of-revenues charge by a municipality -- or in this case, by the trial court via mandatory permanent injunction -- constitutes an illegal tax in contravention of article VII, sections 1(a) and 9(a), Florida Constitution.

#### **ARGUMENT**

- I. THE CHALLENGED FLAT percent-of-revenues fee on revenues from the sale of electricity is an illegal tax.
  - A. Standard of Review.

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