IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION,

a Florida corporation,

Petitioner,

Respondent.

CASE NO: SC02-2272

DCA Case No.5D02-87; 5D01-2470

L.T. Case No. 01-CI-01-4558-39

vs.

CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA,

a municipal corporation created under the laws of the State of Florida,

ANSWER BRIEF OF CITY OF WINTER PARK, FLORIDA

GORDON H. HARRIS, ESQUIRE
THOMAS A. CLOUD, ESQUIRE
TRACY A. MARSHALL, ESQUIRE
GEORGE N. MEROS, JR., ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 094513
Florida Bar Number: 293326
Florida Bar Number: 863300
Florida Bar Number: 0263321
GRAY, HARRIS & ROBINSON, P.A.
301 East Pine Street, Suite 1400
Post Office Box 3068
Orlando, Florida 32802
(407) 843-8880
Attorneys for
City of WINTER PARK, Florida

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
TABLE OF AUTHORITI	ES ii
	RY STATEMENT
• • • • • • • •	
STATEMENT FACTS	OF THE1
STANDARD (REVIEW	OF 11
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.	F THE13
ARGUMENT.	
I.	UNDER HOME RULE POWER, THE CITY OF WINTER PARK HAS THE AUTHORITY TO GRANT, OR TO REFUSE TO GRANT, AUTHORITY TO A PRIVATE UTILITY SUCH AS FLORIDA POWER TO BE THE ELECTRIC SERVICE PROVIDER WITHIN THE
CITY	18
II.	FPC HAS NO AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ELECTRICAL SERVICE WITHIN WINTER PARK, NOR TO USE THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY, WITHOUT A VALID FRANCHISE AGREEMENT27
	FPC MUST PAY FOR ITS USE OF THE FRANCHISE RIGHTS AND FOR ITS USE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY AFTER EXPIRATION OF THE FRANCHISE
	A. IMPLIED CONTRACT AND QUANTUM31
ENRICHMEN	B. UNJUST
ESTOPPEL.	C. EQUITABLE34

TENANCY	D. HOLDOVER35
IV.	ORDINANCE 2420-01 REQUIRES FPC TO PAY FRANCHISE FEES UNTIL THE CITY EXERCISES ITS PURCHASE .37
V.	FRANCHISE FEES ARE NOT IMPERMISSIBLE TAXES
CONCLUSIO .45	N
CERTIFICA SERVICE	TE OF49

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

FEDERAL CASES

	<u>Page</u>
Blair v. City of Chicago, 201 U.S. 400 (1906)21,26	
Charter Communications, Inc. v. Santa Cruz, 133 F. Supp. 2d 1184 (N.D. Cal. 2001)	
City of Cleveland v. Cleveland Elec. Ry. Co., 201 U.S. 529 (1906)	
City of Fayetteville v. Fayetteville Water, Light & Power Co., 135 F. 400 (E.D.N.C. 1905)23	
City of Indianapolis v. Consumers' Gas Trust Co., 144 F. 640 (7th Cir. 1906)23-24	
City of Las Cruces v. El Paso Elec. Co., 1997 W.L. 1089567 (D.C.N.M. 1997)	
City of Las Cruces v. El Paso Elec. Co., 166 F.3d 1220 (10th Cir. 1999)34	
<u>Cole v. City of Indianapolis</u> , 203 U.S. 592 (1906)	
<pre>Delta & Pine Land Co. v. Peoples Gin Co., 546 F. Supp. 939 (N.D. Miss. 1982)26</pre>	
DeShong v. Seaboard Coast Line R.R., 737 F.2d 1520 (11th Cir. 1984)34	
<pre>Detroit United R.R. v. City of Detroit,</pre>	

Durham Pub. Serv. Co. v. City of Durham,
261 U.S. 149
(1923)
Kaneb Servs., Inc. v. Fed. Savs. and Loan Ins. Corp.,
650 F.2d 78 (5th Cir.
1981)34
<pre>KFC Corp. v. Lilleoren,</pre>
821 F. Supp. 1191 (W.D. Ky. 1993)
Madsen v. Women's Health Ctr. Inc.,
512 U.S. 753
(1994)11
McDonald's Corp. v. CB Mqmt., Inc.,
1998 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 12553 (N.D. Ill.
1998)
Mitchell v. Dakota Cent. Tel. Co.,
246 U.S. 396
(1918)
, ,
Ramada Inns, Inc. v. Gadsden Motel Co.,
804 F.2d 1562 (11th Cir.
1986)
Security Life & Accident Ins. Co. v. United States,
357 F.2d 145 (5th Cir.
1966)
Thunderwave, Inc. v. Carnival Corp.,
954 F. Supp. 1562 (S.D. Fla.
1997)32-33
STATE CASES
Alachua County v. State,
737 So. 2d 1065 (Fla. 1999)
42,43
Alamo Rent-A-Car, Inc. v. Bd. of Supervisors,
221 Cal. App. 3d 198 (Ca. Ct. App.
1990)
AmeriSteel Corp. v. Clark, 691 So. 2d 473 (Fla.
1997)22
,

Canakarıs v. Canakarıs, 382 So. 2d 1197 (Fla.
1980)12
<pre>Capital City Light & Fuel Co. v. City of Tallahassee, 28 So. 810 (Fla.</pre>
1900)
<u>City of Boca Raton v. State</u> , 595 So. 2d 25 (Fla. 1992)38
City of Detroit v. Detroit Union Ry., 184 N.W. 516 (Mich.
1921)30
City of Durham v. Durham Pub. Serv. Co., 109 S.E. 40 (N.C.
1921)26
City of Jacksonville v. Jacksonville St. R.R. Co., 10 So. 590 (Fla.
1892)27
<u>City of Miami v. Kayfetz</u> , 92 So. 2d 798 (Fla. 1957)38,39
1937)
City of Oviedo v. Alafaya Utils., Inc., 704 So. 2d 206 (Fla. 5th DCA
1998)40
City of Pensacola v. S. Bell Tel. Co., 37 So. 820 (Fla.
1905)41
City of Plant City v. Mayo, 337 So. 2d 966 (Fla.
1976)40
City of San Diego v. Southern Cal. Tel. Corp.,
266 P.2d 14 (Cal. 1954)30,31
<u>City of Wilson v. Weber</u> , 166 P. 512 (Kan. 1917)27-28
City of Wilton Manors v. Starling,
121 So. 2d 172 (Fla. 2d DCA 1960)38
Coastal Petroleum Co v Am Cvanamid Co

492 So. 2d 339 (Fla. 1986)47
<u>Collier County v. State</u> , 733 So. 2d 1012 (Fla. 1999)43
<u>Dade County v. O'Brien</u> , 660 So. 2d 364 (Fla. 3d DCA 1995)39
<u>Ellis v. Tampa Waterworks Co.</u> , 47 So. 358 (Fla. 1908)21,22
Fla. Atl. Marine, Inc. v. Seminole Boatyard, Inc., 630 So. 2d 219 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993)35
Fla. Cent. and Peninsula R.R. Co. v. Ocala St. and Suburban R.R. Co., 22 So. 692 (Fla. 1897)27
Fla. Power Corp. v. City of Casselberry, 793 So. 2d 1174 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001)
Fla. Power Corp. v. City of Winter Park, 827 So. 2d 322 (Fla. 5th DCA 2002)11
<u>Gaines v. City of Orlando</u> , 450 So. 2d 1174 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984)38
<u>Gates v. City of Sanford</u> , 566 So. 2d 47 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990)39
Hillsborough County v. Fla. Rest. Ass'n, 603 So. 2d 587 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992)24
<pre>Iowa Elec. Light & Power Co. v. Town of Grand Junction</pre>
Jacksonville Port Auth. v. Alamo Rent-A-Car, Inc.,

600 So. 2d 1159 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992)44-45
<u>Johnson v. Killian</u> , 27 So. 2d 345 (Fla. 1946)11
<u>Lake Worth Utils. Auth. v. City of Lake Worth</u> , 468 So. 2d 215 (Fla. 1985)37-38
<u>Leonard v. Baylen St. Wharf Co.</u> , 52 So. 718 (Fla. 1910)
Lowe v. Broward County, 766 So. 2d 1199(Fla. 4th DCA 2000)24
<u>Ludlow v. Union Light, Health & Power Co.</u> , 22 S.W.2d 909 (Ky. Ct. App. 1929)30
Madison Cablevision, Inc. v. City of Morganton 386 S.E.2d 200 (N.C. 1989)29
McAuley v. York, 106 So. 418 (Fla. 1925)
Nelson v. Growers Ford Tractor Co., 282 So. 2d 664 (Fla. 4th DCA 1973)36
<pre>Ohio Elec. Power Co. v. State, 167 N.E. 877 (Ohio 1929)</pre>
<pre>Operation Rescue v. Women's Health Ctr., Inc., 626 So. 2d 664 (Fla. 1993)11,12</pre>
<pre>Pac. Tel. and Tel. Co. v. City of Los Angeles,</pre>
Plissner v. Goodall Rubber Co.,

216 So. 2d 228 (Fla. 3d DCA 1968)11
P.M. Realty & Invs., Inc. v. City of Tampa, 779 So. 2d 404 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000)39
<u>Prior v. White</u> , 180 So. 347 (Fla. 1938)
Roney Inv. Co. v. City of Miami Beach, 174 So. 26 (Fla. 1937)27
Rosamond v. Mann, 80 So. 2d 317 (Fla. 1955)35
<pre>St. Johns County v. N.E. Fla. Builders Ass'n,</pre>
Santa Rosa County v. Gulf Power Co., 635 So. 2d 96 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994)24
<u>Seaboard Air Line R.R. Co. v. Hawes</u> , 269 So. 2d 392 (Fla. 4th DCA 1972)38
SMM Properties, Inc. v. City of North Lauderdale, 760 So. 2d 998 (Fla. 4th DCA 2000)44
<u>State v. Black River Phosphate Co.</u> , 13 So. 640 (Fla. 1893)
<pre>State v. Des Moines City Ry. Co., 140 N.W. 437 (Iowa 1913)26</pre>
<u>State v. Kaszyk</u> , 590 So. 2d 1010(Fla. 3d DCA 1991)39

<u>Storey v. Mayo</u> , 217 So. 2d 304 (Fla. 1968)22
Tallahassee Mem'l Reg'l Med. Ctr. Inc. v. Tallahassee Medical Ctr., Inc., 681 So. 2d 826 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996)
Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Auth. v. K.E. Morris Alignment Serv., Inc., 444 So. 2d 926 (Fla. 1983)26
<u>Thomas v. City of West Palm Beach</u> , 299 So. 2d 11 (Fla. 1974)
<u>Union Trust Co. v. Lucas</u> , 125 So. 2d 582 (Fla. 2d DCA 1960)39
<u>United Tel. Co. v. City of Hill City</u> , 899 P.2d 489 (Kan. 1995)29
Volusia County v. Aberdeen at Ormond Beach, 760 So. 2d 126 (Fla. 2000)43
Water Control Dist. v. Davidson, 638 So. 2d 521 (Fla. 5th DCA 1994)47
Westinghouse Credit Corp. v. Grandoff Invs., Inc., 297 So. 2d 104 (Fla. 2d DCA 1974)31-32
<u>Wingert v. Prince</u> , 123 So. 2d 277 (Fla. 2d DCA 1960)35
Woodard Tire Co., Inc. v. Hartley Realty, Inc., 596 So. 2d 1114 (Fla. 3d DCA 1992)36
STATUTES
Chapter 83, Florida Statutes

Chapter 166, Florida Statutes25
Section 166.021, Florida Statutes37
Section 166.042, Florida Statute21,25,43
Section 167.22, Florida Statutes21,25
Chapter 337, Florida Statutes25
Section 337.401, Florida Statutes21
Chapter 366, Florida Statutes24,25
Section 366.11, Florida Statutes21-22,25,43
LAWS OF FLORIDA
LAWS OF FLORIDA Chapter 74-196, Laws of Florida (1974)
Chapter 74-196, Laws of Florida
Chapter 74-196, Laws of Florida (1974)25 Chapter 77-104, Laws of Florida
Chapter 74-196, Laws of Florida (1974)

5	McQuillin,	<u>The</u>	Law	of	Mun	<u>icipal</u>	<u>Corporations</u> ,	§15.39
(:	3d ed.							
1	996)							38

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The City of Winter Park was the Plaintiff below and will be referred to throughout this brief as "Winter Park" or "the City." Florida Power Corporation was the Defendant below and will be referred to throughout this brief as "FPC." Because the decision below was rendered in an appeal from a non-final order granting an injunction, the record before this Court includes a three volume appendix filed by FPC at the Fifth District Court of Appeal, and several supplemental documents that were inadvertently excluded from the appendix. All cites to the record (derived from FPC's appendix at the Fifth District Court of Appeal) will be in the form: "(R[appendix number] [page number])." All cites to Winter Park's appendix filed with this Court will be in the form: "(A[tab number]

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The electrical system which currently serves customers in Winter Park was originally built by the City of Winter Park in 1913.(R1 51). In 1927, Winter Park sold the system to FPC's predecessor and entered into a franchise agreement allowing FPC's predecessor to use Winter Park's streets, roads and rights-of-way for constructing, operating and maintaining the electrical distribution facilities in Winter Park.(R3 582, 606). In exchange for the rights granted by Winter Park in

the franchise¹, FPC's predecessor agreed to pay Winter Park a franchise fee which was based on a percentage of the gross receipts from the sale of electricity in Winter Park. (R3 606, 1040). The franchise also granted Winter Park the right to buy back the electrical facilities at the expiration of the franchise. (R3 1040-1041). New franchises were granted to FPC in 1947 and 1971, and each franchise contained a buy back, or purchase option provision. (R1 51). Prior to 1999, Winter Park and FPC began negotiations for renewal of the electric franchise. The parties were unable to agree to the terms of the franchise because FPC refused to agree to a franchise agreement which contained a buy back provision, even though that provision had existed in every franchise with Winter Park since 1927 and even though FPC originally purchased the system from Winter Park. (R1 51-52). The 1971 franchise was briefly extended while the parties continued to negotiate a new franchise agreement. (R1 52). The extensions expired on June 12, 2001. (R1 15).

On June 8, 2001, prior to the expiration of the franchise extensions, Winter Park filed a declaratory judgment action seeking a declaration that it had the right to purchase FPC's electric distribution facilities in Winter Park and to

¹Though slightly changing over time, these rights have always included both the right to provide electric service in the City and the right to use the City's rights-of way.

determine the value of such facilities by arbitration.

Additionally, Winter Park sought, "[t]o order FPC to comply with all provisions of the Franchise, including the payment of franchise fees, for so long as FPC continues to utilize Winter Park rights-of-way."

(R1 3-4). Paragraph 9 of the Complaint also alleged "[u]nder Florida law, WINTER PARK is granted the authority to regulate the use and occupation of the rights-of-way with regard to utilities and has the power to impose a charge for use and occupation of those rights-of-way." (R1 3).

On December 12, 2000, also prior to the expiration of the franchise, Winter Park passed Ordinance 2420-01 on first reading setting forth parameters for granting any new electric franchise to build, own and operate electric distribution lines and associated facilities. (R1 134-148). This ordinance was adopted and later became effective on June 12, 2001. This ordinance also provided:

SECTION 17 TERMS GOVERNING "HOLD OVER" FRANCHISEES. In the event that any Franchisee has been granted a franchise by the City prior to the date of this Ordinance (a "Pre-existing Franchise") or if an Electric Distribution Service Franchise granted under this Ordinance is terminated, revoked, or expires, then upon the termination, revocation, or expiration of said franchise, the following shall apply:

(1) Termination of Franchise. The City may, in its sole discretion, either terminate the franchise rights of

Franchisee or enter into negotiations for a new franchise consistent with the requirements of this Ordinance.

Interim Rights of Parties. City chooses to enter into negotiations with a Franchisee under Section 17(1) above, or if a Pre-existing Franchise holder refuses to renew or extend its Preexisting Franchise, or if the Pre-existing Franchise expires under its own terms, or if a termination event under Section 13 occurs, then Franchisee shall be considered a tenant at sufferance on the City's property, streets and rights-of-way and shall be obligated to continue to perform its obligations under the terms of the terminated Pre-existing Franchise or Electric Distributions Service Franchise (as applicable) until any such negotiations have been completed and a new Electric Distribution Service Franchise has become effective or, if applicable, arbitration proceedings have been completed and the City has exercised its option to acquire title and complete the purchase of the Electric Distribution System.

(R1 147). The FPC franchise expired at midnight on June 12, 2001, the same day that Ordinance 2420-01 took effect. FPC ceased paying franchise fees to Winter Park upon expiration of the franchise. (R1 15).

On July 3, 2001, Winter Park filed a Motion for Temporary Injunction to require FPC to Continue Paying Franchise Fees.

(R1 15-19). A hearing on Winter Park's motion was held on July 9, 2001. The trial court found that Winter Park had met the standards for a temporary injunction and ordered FPC to

continue to collect and remit the franchise fees to Winter Park. (R1 101-102).

On July 31, 2001, FPC filed a Motion to Dissolve Temporary Injunction or, in the Alternative, to Require Plaintiff to Post Bond or to Require FPC Only to Collect and Not to Pay (hereinafter "FPC's Motion to Dissolve or Modify Temporary Injunction"). (R1 103-110). FPC did not allege any changes in circumstances or facts from the time the temporary injunction was granted by the trial court. (R1 103-110). Winter Park filed a Motion to Strike FPC's Motion to Dissolve or Modify Temporary Injunction since there had not been any changes in circumstances to warrant a dissolution or modification of the trial court's temporary injunction. (R1 111-114). Winter Park also argued at the hearing that FPC's motivation was solely to put economic pressure on Winter Park since the franchise fees represented approximately \$1,600,000 of annual revenue to Winter Park. (R1 120-121). Moreover, since the franchise fees are paid by the customers as a pass through charge and are not paid out of FPC's profit or rate base, the only purpose of FPC's request to have the franchise fees put into escrow and not paid to Winter Park was to cut off revenues to Winter Park and discourage Winter Park with proceeding in its attempts to have the purchase price of the system determined through arbitration.

The trial court granted Winter Park's Motion to Strike FPC's Motion to Dissolve or Modify Temporary Injunction, denied FPC's Motion to Require a Bond, and granted FPC's Motion to have the franchise fees escrowed rather than paid to Winter Park. (R1 122-123).

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